
Agenda 
City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting 

Wednesday, July 10, 2024, 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, City Building, 320 West Central Avenue 

I. Call to Order

II. Approval of Minutes

A. June 12, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting

III. Agenda Items

A. Final Approval, Record Plan, 785 West Central Avenue, right-of-way dedication for proposed
Seven Brew Coffee

B. Final Approval, Record Plan, Wadestone subdivision, Section Three, residential subdivision

C. Final Approval, Site Plan Review, 825 West Central Avenue, exterior renovations for Planet
Fitness in Midway Plaza Shopping Center

D. Final Approval, Site Plan Review, 827 West Central Avenue, exterior renovations of Aldi grocery
store in Midway Plaza Shopping Center

E. Final Approval, Rezoning Application, 500 East Street, R-2, Low Density Residential District to
CBD, Central Business District

IV. Guest Comments

V. Planning Commission and Staff Comments

VI. Adjournment



 
 
July 10, 2024                                              City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting   Page 1  
 Background Information, Staff Comments & Recommendations 

Background Information & Staff Recommendations 
City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting 

Wednesday, July 10, 2024, 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, City Building, 320 West Central Avenue 

 
 
 

III. Agenda Items 
 

A. Final Approval 
Record Plan, 785 West Central Avenue (SR 73), right-of-way dedication for proposed Seven 
Brew Coffee 
 

 Background Information 
 

This agenda item is a request for right-of-way dedication approval for the proposed location of 
Seven Brew Coffee located at 785 West Central Avenue (State Route 73) in the Midway Plaza 
Shopping Center. The right-of-way dedication was a condition of the Seven Brew Coffee site plan 
approved by Planning Commission at the June 12 meeting. The dedication contains approximately 
0.3 acres. Once approved, the plan will proceed to City Council for final approval. 
 

 Staff Recommendation 
 

City staff recommends approval of the record plan subject to the following condition: 
 

1. Submit to Warren County for review and revise accordingly. 
 
 

B. Final Approval 
Record Plan, Wadestone subdivision, Phase 3, residential subdivision 

 
Background Information 
 
This agenda item is a request for record plan approval for Wadestone subdivision Phase 3, located 
on West Factory Road, south of the Catalpa Drive intersection, submitted by Grand Communities, 
LLC. The plan contains 18 single-family buildable lots on the PUD-R, Planned Unit Development -
Residential portion of the site, with an approximate overall area being 4.5 acres. Record plan 
review is the final stage of the subdivision PUD approval process. Once approved, the plan will 
proceed to City Council for final approval. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
City staff recommends approval of the record plan subject to the following conditions. 
 
1. Sheet 1 – add document number on Note #5. 
2. Record plan does not scale correctly. Revise in future submittal. 
3. Sheet 2 – add min lots size and min dwelling S.F. 
4. Revise easement between lot 64 and 65 to be a 10-foot walkway easement. 
5. Revise easement between lot 72 and 73 to be a Private HOA storm sewer easement. 
6. Revise legend to match lot pin symbolism. 



 
 
July 10, 2024                                              City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting   Page 2  
 Background Information, Staff Comments & Recommendations 

7. Submit to Warren County for review and revise accordingly. 
 
 

C. Final Approval 
Site Plan Review, 825 West Central Avenue (SR 73), exterior renovations for Planet Fitness  

 
Background Information 
 
This agenda item is a request for site plan review approval for exterior renovations to a portion of 
the Midway Plaza Shopping Center to accommodate a new Planet Fitness location. The space to 
be used by Planet Fitness, 21,908 square feet, will occupy the left/east side of the former GAC 
Fitness space (and briefly the 1440 Fitness space) on the easternmost portion of the main 
shopping center building. 
 
Changes to this portion of the shopping center are limited to the north/front façade facing West 
Central Avenue. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
City staff recommends approval of the site plan for Planet Fitness subject to the following 
comments: 
 
1. Provide a material board or bring samples of materials proposed to the July 10 Planning 

Commission meeting. 
2. Verify that no changes are proposed for the south/rear side of the proposed fitness center 

space. 
3. Indicate if any lighting, including architectural lighting, is proposed as part of this proposal. If 

so, coordinate with Planning Department for submission requirements and more. 
4. Indicate if a dumpster is proposed for the space. All mechanical equipment to be screened. 
5. Signage to be reviewed with Zoning Inspector outside the site plan review process. 
 
 

D. Final Approval 
Site Plan Review, 827 West Central Avenue (SR 73), exterior renovations for Aldi grocery 
store 

 
Background Information 
 
This agenda item is a request for site plan review approval for exterior renovations to a portion of 
the Midway Plaza Shopping Center to accommodate a new Aldi grocery store location. The space 
to be used by Aldi, 20,705 square feet, will occupy the right/west side of the former GAC Fitness 
space (and briefly the 1440 Fitness space) on the easternmost portion of the main shopping center 
building. Aldi proposes to construct a 480-square foot addition to the rear/south site of the 
shopping center to accommodate receiving operations. A shopping cart area will be constructed on 
the front/north side of the space along with a canopy. 



 
 
July 10, 2024                                              City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting   Page 3  
 Background Information, Staff Comments & Recommendations 

Staff Recommendation 
 
City staff recommends approval of the site plan subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Provide a material board or bring samples of materials proposed to the July 10 Planning 

Commission meeting. 
2. Indicate if any existing lighting, including architectural lighting, is proposed as part of this 

proposal. If so, coordinate with Planning Department for submission requirements and more. 
3. Dumpster to be enclosed or otherwise screened. 
4. Signage to be reviewed with Zoning Inspector outside this site plan review process. 
5. Revise north arrow on sheet A-131 to point left. 
6. Add graphical scale to building elevation sheets. Also revise the elevation callouts to be north 

and south, not front and back.  
7. Remove one existing rear parking stall that is adjacent to the proposed bollard at the south 

(back) of the property near loading dock. 
8. Overall site plan Sheet C5.0 has the property line for Popeyes shown incorrectly. The right-of-

way has been previously dedicated along West Central Avenue. 
 
 

E. Final Approval 
Rezoning, 500 East Street, from R-2, Low-Density Residential District, to CBD, Central 
Business District 
 

 Background Information 
 

This agenda item is based on a request filed by Massey, LLC, property owner, seeking approval to 
rezone approximately 1.3 acres of land located at 500 East Street. The property, which includes 
two separate parcels under common ownership, is currently zoned R-2, Low-Density Residential 
District; the applicant is requesting rezoning to CBD, Central Business District. 
 
The property was until recently used as a single-family residence, however the applicant earlier this 
spring was in the process of converting part of the structure into a bed-and-breakfast. Both single-
family residences and bed-and-breakfast are permitted uses in the R-2 District. While the 
application states that the request is to accommodate an outdoor event space, the rezoning of 
property permits all permitted uses within the district. A chart of permitted uses in both the R-2 and 
CBD is included in the meeting materials. 
 
The property includes two structures that appear on the Ohio Historic Inventory (OVI) prepared for 
the City in 1997. The OVI was used as a basis to determine the boundaries of the Springboro 
Historic District and protected or contributing properties within it. The first structure is a circa 1850-
1860 shed on the north side of the property that is presently used for storage. The second is a 
circa 1860 barn that was converted into a residence in the 1980s. The shed is a contributing 
structure of the Springboro Historic District, however the residence is not. The Historic District’s 
east boundary ends on the east property line of the subject properties. 
 
The Springboro Master Plan, adopted by City Council in February 2022, includes 
recommendations for the long-range development of the community. It is divided into 16 policy 
areas that make specific recommendations for smaller portions of the community and are grouped 
together because of proximity, land use patterns, date of development and other general 
characteristics. Policy Area 13, Historic Code, includes the subject area. The policy area 



 
 
July 10, 2024                                              City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting   Page 4  
 Background Information, Staff Comments & Recommendations 

recommends a mix of uses to ensure a lively interactive district including residential, service, and 
retail. An excerpt of the plan addressing Policy Area 13 is included in the meeting materials. 
 
Adjacent land uses include single-family residential uses to the southwest, west, and north. To the 
east is an industrial area that includes Mound Steel and High Concrete. To the south is a 
commercial use (110 East Mill Street) and apartment building (100 East Mill Street). Adjacent 
zoning includes R-2 District to the west and north, M-2, Heavy Industrial District, to the west, and 
CBD to the south and southwest along East Mill Street. 

 
This agenda item was reviewed on a preliminary review during the June 12 Planning Commission 
meeting at which time the Planning Commission authorized this item to be placed on the July 10 
agenda for final approval in the form of a recommendation to City Council. 
 
Courtesy notification letters were sent out to all property owners within 300 feet of the subject 
property. A copy of the letter is included in the meeting materials. Should this proposal move 
forward, the same property owners will be notified of a Public Hearing of City Council on the 
rezoning of the property. 

 
 Staff Recommendations  
 

City staff has the following comments regarding this agenda item. 
 

1. No additional development is to occur in the floodway and/or floodplain without prior approval 
by the City Engineer. 

2. Future development of site including structures and pavement subject to review by City staff 
under site plan review process prior to building code review. 

 
 

The information contained in this report is based on material provided to the City of Springboro as of 
Thursday, June 27, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. 



 

APPLICATION—SITE PLANS, SUBDIVISIONS & RECORD PLANS 
CITY OF SPRINGBORO PLANNING COMMISSION 

� SITE PLAN    � REVISION TO APPROVED SITE PLAN   � CONCEPT PLAN    � PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION    � RECORD PLAN 
 

The undersigned requests the approval identified above. Site Plan Review approvals subject to expiration provided for in Section 
1284.18 of the Planning and Zoning Code. For all approvals under this application, it is understood that it shall only authorize the 
approval described in this application, subject to any conditions or safeguards required by the Planning Commission, and/or City 
Council. 

 
 Owner  APPLICANT NAME:          
 Agent 
 Lessee   Address          
 Signed Purchase   
   Contract            
   

Telephone No.  (  )      
 

Fax No.   ( )      
 

    Email Address          
 
   PROPERTY OWNER NAME (IF OTHER):        
    

Address:           
      
              
 
   Telephone No. (  )      
 
Property Address or General Location:          
 
Parcel Number(s):         Zoning District: _______________________ 
 
Proposed Use:              
 
              
 
              
 
The applicant or representative who is authorized to speak on behalf of the request must also be present at all 
meetings. 
 
              
(Signature of Applicant and/or Agent)     (Date) 
 
         
Printed Name 

Woolpert (Engineer/Agent)

Woolpert Representative: Sarah Kramer

1203 Walnut St, 2nd Floor, Cincinnati, OH 45202

513         527-2531

sarah.kramer@woolpert.com

Springboro-Harrison Ltd.

250 Civic Center Drive, Suite 500, Columbus, OH 43215

614         744-2218

785 W Central Ave, Springboro, OH 45066

Commercial - drive-through coffee stand. This submittal is for the R/W
Dedication of the property.

HBD

Sarah Kramer

06/20/2024

0420400005



NORTH

DATE DESCRIPTIONREV NO

DWG NAME DRAWN BY JOB NOCHK'D BY

SHEET NO.

Insert Block:

North - (New)
*Block must be

exploded upon insertion.*

SCALE
1 INCH =

SHEETS ONLY

0

24 x 36

N
E
F
F

&
  A

 S
 S

 O
 C

 I 
A

 T
 E

 S

C
iv

il 
E

ng
in

ee
rs

 +
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

+ 
P

la
nn

er
s 

+ 
S

ur
ve

yo
rs

Fa
x:

Te
l:

44
0.

88
4.

31
00

44
0.

88
4.

31
04

Pa
rm

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
, O

hi
o 

44
13

0
64

05
 Y

or
k 

R
oa

d

w
 w

 w
 . 

n 
e 

f f
 - 

a 
s 

s 
o 

c 
. c

 o
 m

TW-JK14825-021-DED-PLAT 14825-021SJM

1 OF 1

40

20

10

20 FEET

R
ig

h
t 

o
f 

W
ay

 D
ed

ic
at

io
n

 P
la

t 
- 

S
.R

. 
7
3
 -

 W
es

t 
C

en
tr

al
 A

v
en

u
e

SP
R

IN
G

BO
R

O
-H

AR
R

IS
O

N
 L

TD
. -

 7
 B

R
EW

  -
  7

85
 W

 C
EN

TR
AL

 A
VE

N
U

E

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
SP

R
IN

G
BO

R
O

  -
  C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

W
AR

R
EN

   
-  

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
O

H
IO

NORTH

SITE

N
:\
LA
N
D
 
D
E
V
E
LO
P
M
E
N
T\
P
ro
j\
1
4
8
2
5
-
0
2
1
 
7
 
B
re
w
 
–
S
p
ri
n
g
b
o
ro
\
S
u
rv
e
y\
1
4
8
2
5
-
0
2
1
-
D
E
D
-
P
LA
T.
d
w
g
, 
6
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
4
:0
6
:3
5
 
P
M
, 
sm

e
tc
a
lf



 

CITY OF SPRINGBORO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Application  

Case #    
 

 

SITE PLAN   REVISION TO APPROVED SITE PLAN  CONCEPT PLAN  PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION  RECORD PLAN 

 

        

 

The undersigned requests site plan approval for the use specified below.  Should this application be approved, it is 

understood that it shall only authorize that particular use described in this application, subject to any conditions or 

safeguards required by the Planning Commission.  If the construction of the building or site improvements or 

activities are not started within two (2) years after date of approval by the Planning Commission, the approval of this 

site plan shall become null and void 

 

 
 Owner  APPLICANT’S NAME:         

 Agent              

 Lessee              

 Signed Purchase  Telephone No. (  )      
 Contract     Fax No. ( )      

     Email Address         

 

   PROPERTY OWNER’S NAME:        
   Address:           

                

   Telephone No. (  )      

 

Address of Property:          Lot Number:     

Existing Use:         Zoning District:   

Proposed Use: 

              

              

              

 

 

NOTE: Applicant will furnish fifteen (17) copies of plans with attached requirements.  Please note that 

all plans submitted with this proposal must be pre-folded.  The applicant or a representative who is 

authorized to speak on behalf of the request must also be present at the meeting. 

 

 

              

(Signature of Applicant and/or Agent)     (Date) 

12/13/2023

Colin.Roy
Text Box
x

Colin.Roy
Text Box
x

Colin.Roy
Text Box
Grand Communities, LLC

Colin.Roy
Text Box
Grand Communities, LLC

Colin.Roy
Text Box
3940 Olympic Blvd, Suite 400

Colin.Roy
Text Box
Erlanger, KY 41018 

Colin.Roy
Text Box
2555 Factory Road, Springboro, OH 45066

Colin.Roy
Text Box
PUD Residential

Colin.Roy
Text Box
PUD-R

Colin.Roy
Text Box
58-75

Colin.Roy
Text Box
Development of 18 PUD-R lots and associated servicing

Colin.Roy
Text Box
Casey Schlensker

Colin.Roy
Text Box
cschlensker@fischerhomes.com

Colin.Roy
Text Box
513     300 5308

Colin.Roy
Text Box
513     300 5308

Colin.Roy
Snapshot

Colin.Roy
Text Box
June 3, 2024







 

APPLICATION—SITE PLANS, SUBDIVISIONS & RECORD PLANS 
CITY OF SPRINGBORO PLANNING COMMISSION 

� SITE PLAN    � REVISION TO APPROVED SITE PLAN   � CONCEPT PLAN    � PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION    � RECORD PLAN 
 

The undersigned requests the approval identified above. Site Plan Review approvals subject to expiration provided for in Section 
1284.18 of the Planning and Zoning Code. For all approvals under this application, it is understood that it shall only authorize the 
approval described in this application, subject to any conditions or safeguards required by the Planning Commission, and/or City 
Council. 

 
 Owner  APPLICANT NAME:          
 Agent 
 Lessee   Address          
 Signed Purchase   
   Contract            
   

Telephone No.  (  )      
 

Fax No.   ( )      
 

    Email Address          
 
   PROPERTY OWNER NAME (IF OTHER):        
    

Address:           
      
              
 
   Telephone No. (  )      
 
Property Address or General Location:          
 
Parcel Number(s):         Zoning District: _______________________ 
 
Proposed Use:              
 
              
 
              
 
The applicant or representative who is authorized to speak on behalf of the request must also be present at all 
meetings. 
 
              
(Signature of Applicant and/or Agent)     (Date) 
 
         
Printed Name 

thildreth
Typewritten Text

thildreth
Typewritten Text
X

thildreth
Typewritten Text
Michael D Twiss, AIA - The MT Studio, LLC

thildreth
Typewritten Text
226 S Market St

thildreth
Typewritten Text
Troy, OH  45373

thildreth
Typewritten Text
937

thildreth
Typewritten Text
214-7000

thildreth
Typewritten Text
N/A

thildreth
Typewritten Text
thildreth@mtstudio.com

thildreth
Typewritten Text
Donald L Leathery, Jr - The Leathery Company

thildreth
Typewritten Text
5 East Long St, Suite 1200

thildreth
Typewritten Text
Columbus, OH  43215

thildreth
Typewritten Text
614

thildreth
Typewritten Text
224-4440

thildreth
Typewritten Text
827 W Central Ave - Springboro, OH  45066

thildreth
Typewritten Text
420377014

thildreth
Typewritten Text
HBD

thildreth
Typewritten Text
A3 Assembly for Planet Fitness fitness center with a maximum occupancy of 309.

thildreth
Typewritten Text
6/20/24

thildreth
Typewritten Text
Michael D Twiss, AIA

thildreth
Image





__________________________________________________________________________________

A-430
2

__________________________________________________________________________________

A-430
1

2

3
TYP.

6

7

A-2112

A-210

4

1

2

18

16

15

26

3

A-211- 6

5

7

1

3

__________________________________________________________________________________

A-420
1

4

19

14

5

1

13

21

19

8

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

45678
SK-002

1

100
VESTIBULE

ACT-1

EXIST

126

108

112

114

115

123

116

117

118

122

121

120

100B

101
RECEPTION

102
OPEN GYM

103
FUNC. TRAINING

104
MOBILITY

105
WOMENS LOCKERS

106
WOMENS SHOWERS

107
WOMENS RESTROOM

108
JAN

109
MENS LOCKERS

111
MENS RESTROOM

110
MENS SHOWERS

112
BLACK CARD SPA

123
STORAGE

113
MASSAGE

114
TAN

115
TAN

116
TAN

117
TAN

118
TAN

120
ELEC.

121
TAN

122
BEAUTY ANGEL

119
HYDRO

124
STORAGE

125
STORAGE 126

ELEC.
125

50
' -

 0
 3

/4
"

1'
 - 

0"
59

' -
 0

"
1'

 - 
0"

37
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

3' - 1" 10' - 0" 22' - 9 1/2" 10' - 0" 36' - 6 3/8"

10
' -

 0
"

8'
 - 

0"
10

' -
 0

"

10' - 0"

10
' -

 0
"

8 
1/

2"
54

' -
 0

"
5'

 - 
0"

54
' -

 0
"

5'
 - 

6 
1/

4"

8'
 - 

2 
1/

4"
12' - 7 5/8"

18' - 4 7/8"

1

3
TYP.

3
TYP.

3
TYP.

5

5

5 5

13

17

20

21

21

21

21

22

23

23

24

25

25

25

9

11

B

B

F

F

F F

F

F

J

F

J

J

10

A-310

2

2
A-311

__________________________________________________________________________________
1

A-311
__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

A-410
1

6 5/8" 2' - 8" 15' - 9" 15' - 9" 2' - 8" 4"

A

B

C
12

NEW PARTITION

WALL TAG

ROOM TAG

DOOR TAG

REVISION TAG

ELEVATION TAG

KEY NOTE

COLUMN GRID

NEW DOOR

EXISTING DOOR 
TO REMAIN

EXISTING PARTITION 
TO REMAIN

EXISTING (1 HR.) FIRE 
RATED PARTITION BY 
LANDLORD - U419

NOT IN CONTRACT REGION

XXX

XXX
Name

XX

A101

1

1

1

1

X

XX

XX

__________________________________________________________________________________

A101
1 DETAIL TAG

WALL SECTION
1

A101

SIM.

__________________________________________________________________________________

STOREFRONT TAG

SEE SHEET A-111

00

XX

A. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, ALL NEW INTERIOR WALLS TO  
BE TYPE  

B. ALL WALLS ARE TO BE FINISHED TO A LEVEL FOUR (4) 
DRYWALL FINISH AND PAINTED WITH ONE (1) COAT OF 
PRIMER AND TWO (2) FINAL COATS OF PAINT PER 
FINISH SCHEDULE.

C. THE GC SHALL COORDINATE ALL FINISHES/ COLORS WITH 
THE OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  

D. ALL INTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF FINISH 
WALL OR COLUMN CENTERLINE.

E. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND THE ELECTRICAL 
SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE LIGHTING, 
SWITCHING, AND POWER DISTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS 
WITH THE OWNER.

F. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO LAY OUT ALL PARTITIONS & 
FIXTURES AS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS & VERIFY 
DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO STARTING WORK OR ORDERING 
ANY COMPONENTS.

G. ALL MATERIALS AND WORK TO MEET ALL LOCAL CODES 
AND ORDINANCES.

H. PROVIDE WOOD OR METAL STRAP BLOCKING FOR ALL 
WALL SUPPORTED FIXTURES WITHIN WALLS AND 
ABOVE CEILING LINE AS REQUIRED. ALL WOOD 
BLOCKING TO BE FIRE RETARDANT.

I. CONTRACTOR MUST VERIFY ALL JOB DIMENSIONS, 
DRAWINGS, DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND REPORT 
ANY DISCREPANCIES TO OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE 
BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH WORK. ARCHITECT WILL NOT 
BE LIABLE FOR ANY ERRORS AND OMISSIONS NOT 
REPORTED BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

J. DRAWING SCALE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE. IF SHOWN 
DIMENSION DOES NOT COORDINATE WITH IDENTIFIED 
SCALE, CONTACT ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ASSOCIATED 
WORK.

K. THROUGH PENETRATIONS OF FIRE-RESISTANCE- RATED 
WALLS SHALL COMPLY SECTION 712.3.1 AND SHALL BE 
PROTECTED BY AN APPROVED FIRESTOP SYSTEM 712.3.1.2

L. WHEN APPLICABLE, PROVIDE APPROVED FIRE DAMPERS 
IN FIRE WALLS AND FIRE BARRIERS PER SECTION 716.5.

M. PROVIDE A PORTABLE FIRE EXTINGUISHER DURING 
CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED BY THE FIRE PREVENTION 
OFFICIAL AND SECTION 906.

N. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE 
TO PLACE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS THROUGHOUT THE 
BUILDING PER LOCAL CODE REQUIREMENTS AND FIRE 
MARSHALL DIRECTION. ALL FIRE EXTINGUISHERS SHALL BE 
WITHIN SEVENTY-FIVE (75') TRAVEL DISTANCE OF ALL 
LOCATIONS. ALSO, ALL WALL MOUNTED FIRE 
EXTINGUISHERS WITH THEIR LEADING EDGES. BETWEEN 
27" AND 80" ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR SHALL NOT 
PROTRUDE MORE THAN 4" INTO WALKS, HALLS, 
CORRIDORS, PASSAGEWAYS, OR AISLES. GC TO PROVIDE 
MEANS OF DETECTING THE SURFACE MOUNTED 
EXTINGUISHERS THAT ARE COLUMN MOUNTED.

O. GC TO VERIFY WHICH WALL PARTITIONS ARE TO RECEIVE 
MOISTURE RESISTANT WALL BOARD. REFER TO SHEET A
-601 FOR MORE INFORMATION.

P. GC TO VERIFY WITH OWNER/SIGNAGE VENDOR ALL 
BLOCKING SIZES AND REQUIREMENTS FOR THE LUNK 
ALARM, CLOCK, TV'S, STOP/GO LIGHT, ETC

7 1/4"
2" SLIP TRACK. SEE 
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR 
ATTACHMENT AT WOOD ROOF 
STRUCTURE

5/8" GYP. BOARD

UNFACED SOUND 
BATT INSULATION

6" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

6" METAL TRACK, SECURE TO 
EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

4 7/8"

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

3-5/8" METAL TRACK, SECURE 
TO EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

(2) LAYERS 1/4" HI-FLEX GYP. 
BD. ON ONE OR BOTH SIDES - 
SEE PLAN

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

3-5/8" CURVED METAL TRACK, 
SECURE TO EXISTING SLAB W/ 
POWER ACTUATED FASTENERS

4 5/8"

6" METAL STUD WALL TO DECKA 3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO DECKB 3-5/8" CURVED METAL STUD WALL TO DECKC

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

3-5/8" CURVED METAL STUD WALL TO 6" 
ABOVE CEILINGC1

7 1/4"

5/8" GYP. BOARD

6" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

6" METAL TRACK, SECURE TO 
EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

6" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK

6" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE CEILING

D

D1

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

4 7/8"

5/8" GYP. BOARD

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

3-5/8" METAL TRACK, SECURE 
TO EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO B.O. GYP. 
BD. SOFFIT

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE 
CEILING

E

E1

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

6" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK (1 HOUR 
RATED ASSEMBLY - SEE WALL LEGEND 
FOR ADDITIONAL INFO.)

A1

2" SLIP TRACK. SEE 
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS 
FOR ATTACHMENT AT ROOF 
STRUCTURE

5/8" GYP. BOARD

UNFACED SOUND 
BATT INSULATION

5/8" GYP. BOARD

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C. 

3-5/8" METAL TRACK, SECURE 
TO EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK 
(GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY UP TO DECK)F

4 1/4"

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE 
CEILING (GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)F1

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 9'-6" A.F.F. 
(GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)F2

A2 GYP. BOARD TO 6" ABOVE CEILING

B1 NO UNFACED SOUND BATT INSULATION

E2 GYP. BOARD TO 6" ABOVE ACT CEILING TO 
DECK ABOVE OPEN CEILING SIDE

3-5/8" METAL STUD PARTIAL HEIGHT WALLK

GRANITE CAP W/ RADIUS 
CORNERS & DOUBLE 
BULLNOSE EDGES

T.O. WALL

PROVIDE 1-1/2" DIA HOLE 
FOR CONDUIT

ELECTRICAL OUTLET - SEE 
ELEC. DRAWINGS
3/4" FRT PLYWOOD SHEATHING 
EACH SIDE W/ RUBBER FLOORING

METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

PITTCON SKB POST OR EQUAL AT 
EACH FREESTANDING END OF 
WALL AND INTERMEDIATE SPANS 
AS RECOMMENDED BY MANUF.

1/2" KERDI BOARD WITH 
INTEGRAL WATERPROOFING 
MEMBRANE

3-5/8" METAL TRACK, SECURE 
TO EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK 
(GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)M

4 3/4"

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE 
CEILING (GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)M1

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 9'-6" A.F.F. 
(GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)M2

5 7/8"

1/2" KERDI BOARD WITH 
INTEGRAL WATERPROOFING 
MEMBRANE

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.
3-5/8" METAL TRACK, SECURE 
TO EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO B.O. GYP. 
BD. SOFFIT
3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE 
CEILING

L

L1

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

WALL TILE AS SCHEDULED
WALL TILE AS SCHEDULED

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE 
CEILING, (WALL TILE ON SHOWER ROOM 
SIDE ONLY)

L2

3-5/8" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK ABOVE, 
(WALL TILE ON ONE SIDE ONLY). GYP. 
BOARD ON NON TILE SIDE

L3

L4 6" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK ABOVE WITH 
UNFACED SOUND BATT INSULATION

5/8" GYP. BOARD

METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

METAL TRACK, SECURE TO 
EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

4 1/4"
2" SLIP TRACK. SEE 
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS 
FOR ATTACHMENT AT WOOD 
ROOF STRUCTURE

FOIL-FACED BATT OR SPRAY IN 
INSULATION IN CAVITY FOR MIN. 
INSULATION VALUE PER CODE AT 
EXTERIOR WALLS ONLY

3-5/8" METAL STUD FURRING TO DECKH

3-5/8" METAL STUD FURRING TO 6" 
ABOVE CEILING (REUSE EXISTING WALL 
IF APPLICABLE)

H1

EXISTING CMU WALL

5/8" GYP. BOARD

6" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C. 

6" METAL TRACK, SECURE TO 
EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

6" METAL STUD WALL TO DECK 
(GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)G

6 5/8"

BRACE TO STRUCTURE 
ABOVE, SEE STRUCTURAL 
DWGS

6" METAL STUD WALL TO 6" ABOVE 
CEILING (GYP. BD ONE SIDE ONLY)G1

4 7/8"

5/8" GYP. BOARD

GRANITE CAP W/ RADIUS 
CORNERS & DOUBLE 
BULLNOSE EDGES

3-5/8" METAL STUD PARTIAL HEIGHT WALLJ

6" METAL STUD PARTIAL HEIGHT WALLJ1

T.O. WALL
4'

METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

PITTCON SKB POST OR EQUAL AT 
EACH FREESTANDING END OF 
WALL AND INTERMEDIATE SPANS 
AS RECOMMENDED BY MANUF.

6" METAL STUD FURRING TO DECKH2

SPRAY ON CMU WATER BARRIER, 
MFG: DRYLOCK OR APPROVED EQUAL.

5 7/8"

1/2" KERDI BOARD WITH 
INTEGRAL WATERPROOFING 
MEMBRANE

3-5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C.

3-5/8" METAL STUD PARTIAL HEIGHT 
WALLN

WALL TILE AS SCHEDULED

PITTCON SKB POST OR EQUAL 
AT EACH FREESTANDING END 
OF WALL AND INTERMEDIATE 
SPANS AS RECOMMENDED BY 
MANUF.

3-5/8" METAL TRACK, SECURE 
TO EXISTING SLAB W/ POWER 
ACTUATED FASTENERS

1X6 WOOD PINE WALL CAP 
(FINGER-JOINTED) PAINTED 
BLACK

SHEET NOTES

GENERAL NOTES

Date Description

Project Name

Project Number

Description

Scale

Seal / Signature

226 S. Market St.
Troy, OH 45373
 937.980.9362

SPRINGBORO, OH

As indicated

6/2
1/2

02
4 6

:35
:04

 A
M

Au
tod

es
k D

oc
s:/
/P
F_
Sp

rin
gb
or
o_
OH

/P
F_
Sp

rin
gb
or
o O

H.
rvt

A-110

CONSTRUCTION PLAN

24071

SPRINGBORO, OH

planet fitness
W. Central Ave. Springboro, OH

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1 CONSTRUCTION PLAN

N.T.S.SCALE:

CONSTRUCTION PLAN LEGEND

1 ROUTE POWER FROM UNDER SLAB; COORDINATE
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL RUNS WITH ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS.

2 EXISTING SIDEWALK TO REMAIN. PATCH AND REPAIR AS
NEEDED.

3 PAINT COLUMN (P-2)
4 TELEPHONE/SECURITY EQUIPMENT. SEE ELECTRICAL

DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. GC TO
COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH SECURITY VENDOR AND
MUSIC VENDOR.

5 LINE OF SOFFIT / BULKHEAD ABOVE. SEE REFLECTED
CEILING PLAN FOR MORE INFORMATION.

6 RECEPTION DESK. SEE DETAILS ON SHEET A-410 FOR MORE
INFORMATION.

7 BEVERAGE COOLER PROVIDED BY OWNER.
8 LOCKABLE BASE CABINET W/ GRANITE TOP AND 10" HOLE.
9 TANKLESS WATER HEATERS PROVIDED BY OWNER; REFER

TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS.
10 LOCATION OF WASHER & DRYER, SEE PLUMBING AND

MECHANICAL DRAWINGS PROVIDE FRP-1 TO 4'-0" A.F.F. AT
WASHER AND DRYER.

11 MOP SINK; REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS. PROVIDE FRP-1
TO 4'-0" A.F.F. AT MOP SINK.

12 "HYDRATION" WALL SIGNAGE, INSTALLED BY SIGNAGE
VENDOR.

13 55" WALL MOUNTED TELEVISION, PROVIDE BLOCKING 2' IN
ALL DIRECTIONS AROUND ELECTRICAL OUTLET AS
REQUIRED. G.C. TO CONFIRM MOUNTING HEIGHTS W/
OWNER. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE
INFORMATION.

14 "MISSION STATEMENT" SIGNAGE. INSTALLED BY SIGNAGE
VENDOR. SEE DETAIL #01/A-112.

15 "BLACK CARD SPA" SIGNAGE. INSTALLED BY SIGNAGE
VENDOR.

16 RECESSED CUBBY LOCKERS PROVIDED BY OWNER &
INSTALLED BY G.C.

17 "FUNCTIONAL TRAINING"; INSTALLED BY SIGNAGE VENDOR.
GC TO COORDINATE ALL REQUIRED F.T. WOOD BLOCKING
LOCATION WITH SIGNAGE VENDOR.

18 "NO CRITICS" WALL SIGNAGE. INSTALLED BY SIGNAGE
VENDOR.

19 STRETCHING BARS, SEE INTERIOR ELEVATION & DETAIL
#02/A-112.

20 ELECTRICAL GEAR; REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.
21 SURFACE MOUNTED FIRE EXTINGUISHER; COORDINATE

EXACT LOCATIONS WITH FIRE MARSHAL.
22 ADA COMPLIANT DRINKING FOUNTAIN; REFER TO PLUMBING

DRAWINGS.
23 A MINIMUM OF 5% OF THE LOCKERS MUST BE ADA

COMPLIANT. THEREFORE, EACH LOCKER AREA REQUIRES A
MINIMUM OF 3 LOCKERS THAT MEET THE ACCESSIBILITY
CODE.

24 "JUDGEMENT FREE ZONE" WALL GRAPHIC. INSTALLED BY
SIGNAGE VENDOR.

25 WALL MOUNTED MIRRORS BY GC. SEE INTERIOR
ELEVATIONS.

26 WALL MOUNTED "LUNK ALARM" PROVIDED AND INSTALLED
BY OWNER. G.C. TO PROVIDE POWER. SEE INTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR MOUNTING HEIGHTS.

NORTH

E

6.21.2024 ISSUED FOR PERMIT BID

SCALE:  1" = 1'-0"
2 WALL TYPES (NOT ALL WALL TYPES USED)



WALL PANEL: MFG. NICHIHA
TUFFBLOCK
STEEL

EXTERIOR PAINT SHERWIN WILLIAMS

STONE: SNYDER BRICK AND BLOCK
SPLIT FACE BLOCK 4" X 16" NOM.

MORTAR COLOR TO BE STANDARD GRAY WITH WATERPROOFING.

CMU-1

1000 BLACK ONYX

EIFS:
EIFS-1

WP-1

EP-1

EIFS SKIM COAT

COLOR: MARCH WIND SW 7668
SHERWIN WILLIAMS

COLOR: MARCH WIND SW 7668

45678

4

2

1

2
A-311

__________________________________________________________________________________

1
A-311

__________________________________________________________________________________

T.O. PARAPET
29'-5 1/2"

20
' -

 1
 1

/2
"

9'
 - 

4"

1

3 WP-1

CMU-1 EP-1CMU-1 5EP-1 5EP-1 5

EIFS-1 EIFS-14

EIFS-1 4

EP-1 5

45678

4

11

2 2

2

3

3

35

6

A. EXTERIOR GLAZING ASSEMBLY FRAMING TO BE 4 1/2" DEEP X 2" SIGHTLINE  
STANDARD, 4" HORIZONTAL MEMBERS, CENTER GLAZED, THERMALLY BROKEN 
SYSTEM WITH DARK BRONZE ANODIZED FINISH. BASIS OF DESIGN: KAWNEER 
TRIFAB VERSAGLZE 451T.

B. ALL EXTERIOR GLAZING SHALL BE 1" INSULATING GLASS UNITS CONSISTING OF 
1/4" CLEAR LOW-E GLASS, 1/2" AIRSPACE. 1/4" TINTED GLASS.
BASIS OF DESIGN: PILKINGTON SOLAR E PLUS ON GREY LOW-E #2
NOTE TO GC: CONFIRM EXACT SPEC WITH ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ORDER.

C. CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT GLAZING SAMPLES FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY 
OWNER AND ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ORDERING MATERIALS FOR PROJECT. IN 
ADDITION TO PRODUCT MATERIALS (CUT SHEETS, COLOR CHARTS, ETC.) FULL 
SIZE 12" X 12" SAMPLES OF ACTUAL PRODUCT MUST BE SUBMITTED

D. WHERE INDICATED BY SYMBOL "T", PROVIDE TEMPERED GLASS.  PROVIDE 
TEMPERED INNER LITE IF SYMBOL OCCURS AT INSULATING GLASS.

E. OVERALL DIMENSIONS INDICATED ARE DESIGN DIMENSIONS, INDICATING SCOPE 
AND DESIGN INTENT.  FIELD VERIFY ALL ROUGH OPENINGS IN FIELD PRIOR TO 
FABRICATION.

F. GLAZING AT FULL GLAZED (FG) DOORS TO BE 1/4" TEMPERED GLASS.  TINT GLASS 
TO MATCH EXTERIOR WINDOWS IF DOOR IS EXTERIOR DOOR.  PROVIDE CLEAR 
GLASS IF DOOR IS INTERIOR DOOR.

2"
1'

 - 
8"

2"
7'

 - 
0"

9'
 - 

0"

4 1/2" 2" 6' - 0" 2" 1' - 3 3/4" 2"

8' - 2 1/4"

T T

T

2"
6'

 - 
10

"
2"

1'
 - 

8"
2"

4 1/2" 2" 3' - 8 7/8" 2" 3' - 8 7/8" 2" 3' - 8 7/8" 2" 4 1/2"

9'
 - 

0"

12' - 7 5/8"

T T T

2"
6'

 - 
10

"
2"

1'
 - 

8"
2"

9'
 - 

0"

2" 3' - 7 7/8" 2" 3' - 7 7/8" 2" 4 1/2"

8' - 2 1/4"

T T

SHEET NOTES

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE

DEMOLITION SHEET NOTES

Date Description

Project Name

Project Number

Description

Scale

Seal / Signature

226 S. Market St.
Troy, OH 45373
 937.980.9362

SPRINGBORO, OH

As indicated

6/2
1/2

02
4 6

:35
:06

 A
M

Au
tod

es
k D

oc
s:/
/P
F_
Sp

rin
gb
or
o_
OH

/P
F_
Sp

rin
gb
or
o O

H.
rvt

A-310

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

24071

SPRINGBORO, OH

planet fitness
W. Central Ave. Springboro, OH

1 WALL SCONCE / PACK. SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.
2 PROPOSED SIGNAGE AREA. VENDOR TO SUBMIT UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT
3 METAL COPING MATCH NICHIHA COLOR
4 SKIM COAT OF E.I.F.S. ON EXISTING E.I.F.S.
5 PAINT EXISTING BRICK.

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"
2 FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"
1 DEMOLITION ELEVATION

1 EXISTING BRICK TO REMAIN
2 EXISTING E.I.F.S. TO REMAIN
3 EXISTING COPING TO REMAIN
4 REMOVE E.I.F.S. TO STRUCTURE INCLUDING TRIM AND REVEALS.
5 REMOVE COPING SYSTEM
6 REMOVE STOREFRONT DOOR, AND PREP FOR NEW STOREFRONT IN OPENING.

6.21.2024 ISSUED FOR PERMIT BID

SCALE:  3/8" = 1'-0"
3 STOREFRONT TYPES

A B C



APPLICATION—SITE PLANS, SUBDIVISIONS & RECORD PLANS 
CITY OF SPRINGBORO PLANNING COMMISSION 

� SITE PLAN    � REVISION TO APPROVED SITE PLAN   � CONCEPT PLAN    � PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION    � RECORD PLAN

The undersigned requests the approval identified above. Site Plan Review approvals subject to expiration provided for in Section 
1284.18 of the Planning and Zoning Code. For all approvals under this application, it is understood that it shall only authorize the 
approval described in this application, subject to any conditions or safeguards required by the Planning Commission, and/or City 
Council. 

 Owner APPLICANT NAME: 
 Agent
 Lessee Address 
 Signed Purchase

Contract

Telephone No.  ( ) 

Fax No.   ( ) 

Email Address   

PROPERTY OWNER NAME (IF OTHER): 

Address:  5 East Long Street, Suite 1200, 

Columbus OH. 43215

Telephone No. ( 

Property Address or General Location: 

Parcel Number(s):  Zoning District: _______________________ 

Proposed Use:   

The applicant or representative who is authorized to speak on behalf of the request must also be present at all 
meetings. 

(Signature of Applicant and/or Agent) (Date) 

Printed Name 

Don Leathery

(614) 224-4440

6/20/2024

JBBrooks
Text Box
2221 Schrock Rd, Columbus, OH 43229 

JBBrooks
Text Box
Justice Brooks - ms consultants, inc 

JBBrooks
Text Box
permits@msconsultants.com

JBBrooks
Text Box

JBBrooks
Text Box

JBBrooks
Text Box
827 W. Central Ave, Springboro, OH 45066

JBBrooks
Text Box

JBBrooks
Text Box

JBBrooks
Text Box

JBBrooks
Text Box

JBBrooks
Text Box
x

JBBrooks
Text Box
717         778-1939

JBBrooks
Text Box
Highway Business District

JBBrooks
Text Box
Clayton Schrey

JBBrooks
Text Box
0420377014

jleiter
Text Box
ALDI grocery store



June 13, 2024 

Via Email 

City of Springboro 

320 W Central Avenue 

Springboro, OH 45066 

RE: Owner's Authorization Letter 

I, Don Leathery, as authorized representative of Springboro-Harrison, Ltd., an Ohio limited 

partnership {the "Company"), which Company is the owner of the real property and improvements 

located at 827 W Central Ave, Springboro, OH 45066, and being Parcel ID# 4203770140 in the 

Midway Plaza, hereby authorize ALDI Inc, {"Tenant") & MS Consultants (the "Architect") to submit 

applications on this parcel for site plan approvals and building permits on the owner's behalf, 

required for Tenant's proposed construction of an Aldi Grocery Store establishment within said 

parcel. Tenant and Architect may also attend meetings on behalf of the owner and the project. 

Sincerely, 



DYH DYH

C
U
R
B
SID

E
C
U
R
B
SID

E
C
U
R
B
SID

E

Inc.
(937) 323-5500

(937) 323-0023 fax

4400 S. Charleston Pike
Springfield, OH  45502

LZD



DYH

C
U
R
B
SID

E
C
U
R
B
SID

E
C
U
R
B
SID

E

Inc.
(937) 323-5500

(937) 323-0023 fax

4400 S. Charleston Pike
Springfield, OH  45502

LZD



NO PARKING

NO PARKING

TRASH
CAN

REF.

16 DOOR COOLER
22'-0" x -60'-6 1/2" x 9'-3"h.BACK

ROOM
109

UNISEX 1
103

BREAK
ROOM

106

OFFICE
107

HALL
104

UNISEX 2
105

(10) SPOT MERCHANDISERS

16 DOOR FREEZER
16'-0" x 43'-6" x 9'-3"h.

CO2 TANKS

SALES
102

WALK
OFF MAT

UTILITY
AREA

108

ROOF
LADDER

LOCKERS

COAT CLOSET

MANAGER
ORGANIZATION
DESK

BALER

FLOOR
SCRUBBER

RECALL SHELVING

DUMPSTER

11
3'

-4
"

eCOMMERCE
110

REAL ESTATE ATTIC
STOCK SHELVING

(90) MODEL
563W CART
STORAGE

FLOOR MOUNTED
STAINLESS STEEL RAIL

S1 P5

E4 P4

E3 P3

BEVERAGE
COOLERS

S2
 P

6
S3

 P
7 S4

 P
8

FU
TU

RE

S5
 P

9

ATTENDANT
STATION

GUIDANCE
RAILING

BEVERAGE
COOLERS

9'-11"
CLEAR

51'-0"

7'
-5

"
5'

-0
"

RA
C

KI
N

G

6'-0"14'-0"

16
'-0

"

7'
-5

"
2'

-7
"

43'-6"

6'
-0

"

5'
-0

"
RA

C
KI

N
G

19
'-0

 5
/8

"

6'
-0

"
(T

YP
)

eCOMMERCE
SHELVING

12'-10 1/2"3'-2 1/2"54'-0"8'-6"32'-0"

3'-2 1/2"10'-0"3'-2 1/2"8'-4 3/4"4'-4 1/4"16'-6 1/2"

3'-2 1/2"54'-0"8'-6"32'-0"

4'-4 1/4"
16'-6 1/2"

8'-0"

76'-0"

VESTIBULE
101

S6 P10

12'-1"

46
'-0

"
6'

-0
"

3'
-0

"
7'

-1
"

3'
-3

 3
/8

"
19

'-0
"

19
'-0

"

REFRIGERATION
EQUIP PANEL

FD

32'-0" 8'-6"

EXISTING
COLUMN

EXISTING
COLUMN

EXISTING
COLUMN

HUB
DRAIN

8'-7"
CLEAR

MEAT
COOLER

9'-6 1/2"

HUB
DRAIN

7'
-8

"
7'

-5
"

7'
-8

"
7'

-5
"

7'
-1

1"
7'

-5
"

8'
-1

1"
3'

-2
 1

/2
"

9'
-5

 1
/8

"
C

LE
A

R

10
'-1

1"
7'

-5
"

7'
-8

"
7'

-5
"

7'
-8

"
7'

-5
"

8'
-1

"
7'

-1
"

±8
'-6

"
C

LE
A

R

12' 6DMLH
PRODUCE

12' 6DMLH
PRODUCE

12' 6DMLH
PRODUCE

FLOOR MOUNTED
STAINLESS STEEL RAIL

FLOOR MOUNTED CORNER
GUARD (BOTH SIDES)

PRODUCE

154'-8"

14'-0 3/4"14'-0"

11'-2 1/4"

17'-0"

72
'-1

 1
/2

" M
UL

TI-
D

EC
K 

UN
ITS

72
'-8

 1
/2

" C
LE

A
R

EXISTING
COLUMN
TO BE
REMOVED

EXISTING
COLUMN
TO BE
REMOVED

BATTERY
CHARGERS

BATTERY
CHARGERS

STACKERS

PALLET
JACKS

16'-0 3/4"

7'-1"

CLEAR

75
'-3

"

8'
 6

D
M

LH
FR

ES
H 

M
EA

T
12

' 6
D

M
LH

D
EL

I
12

' 6
D

M
LH

D
EL

I
12

' 6
D

M
LH

D
EL

I
8'

 6
D

M
LH

D
EL

I

ADJACENT TENANT

ADJACENT TENANT

EXISTING
COLUMN

16'-8 1/4"

E2 P2

E1 P1

5'
-1

"

8'
-0

"
4'

-4
"

10
'-3

 1
/2

"

DRINKING
FOUNTAINS

10
'-2

"

54'-0" 3'-2 1/2"

8'
 6

D
M

LH
FR

ES
H 

M
EA

T

18
'-0

"

OUTLINE OF EXISTING
MEZZANINE TO BE
REMOVED

EXISTING
COLUMN

ATTENDANT
STATION

EXISTING MASONRY
BEARING WALL TO BE
REMOVED

12
'-1

1 
1/

2"
C

LE
A

R

EXISTING
RISER
ROOM

EXISTING
TRANSFORMER

GAS
METER

EXISTING
ELECTRICAL PANELS

EXISTING
DOOR

5

8' 6DMLH
FRESH MEAT

12
' 6

D
M

LH
4'

 F
M

/8
' D

EL
I

10
'-0

"
7'

-4
"

EXISTING
COLUMN

EXISTING
COLUMN

1'-0"40'-3"
MULTI-DECK UNITS

12'-2 3/4"

7'
-1

"

11'-2 1/4"

4'
-1

0"

PRODUCE

3'
-0

"
C

LR
8'-0 1/4"

13'-7"34'-2"

14'-2"

NEW
COLUMN

NEW
COLUMN

8'-4"

22
'-0

"

8'
-0

"

7

EXISTING
COLUMN
TO BE
REMOVED

4' 6DMLH
PRO

EXISTING MASONRY
WALL TO BE REMOVED

9'
-5

 1
/8

"
C

LE
A

R

10
'-6

"

1414

9'
-8

"
C

LE
A

R

EXISTING
COLUMN

10'-3 3/4"
CLEAR

3'-2 1/2" 8'-4 3/4" 20'-0"

NEW
COLUMN

NEW
COLUMN

NEW
COLUMN

NEW
COLUMN

10
'-8

"
M

.O
.

24'-0"

20
'-0

"
76

'-0
"

60'-6 1/2"

11
'-3

 1
/2

"
C

LE
A

R

WINE

2

55

7'-4"
CLEAR

13
'-9

 1
/2

"

CLOSET
110

HUB DRAIN (CAPPED
FOR FUTURE USE)

HUB DRAIN (CAPPED
FOR FUTURE USE)

STEP DOWN
TRANSFORMER

2'
-9

"

8'
-5

"
C

LE
A

R

181'-0"

7'
-0

"
C

LE
A

R

 AREA SUMMARY
 OCCUPANCY USE  ROOM NAME SQUARE FOOTAGE
 MERCANTILE  SALES / VESTIBULE 13,106

 UNISEX 2 88
 UNISEX 1 88
 HALL 143

 SUBTOTAL (MERCANTILE) 13,425

 BUSINESS  OFFICE 209
 BREAK ROOM 264
 eCOMMERCE 169
 CLOSET 39

 SUBTOTAL (BUSINESS) 681

 STORAGE / STOCK  BACKROOM 3,932
 COOLER 1,244
 FREEZER 644

 SUBTOTAL (STORAGE / STOCK) 5,820

 SUBTOTAL (OCCUPANCIES) 19,926
 EXTERIOR /INTERIOR WALLS / UNOCCUPIED SPACE 926
 BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE 20,852
 EXTERIOR CANOPY 645
 TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE (INCLUDING CANOPY) 21,497

V7ER
12,612

96
96

120

12,924

258
315
401
36

1,010

3,740
1,338
647

5,725

19,659
1,005
20,664
1,031

21,695

OPERATIONS DATA
 ITEM SPRINGBORO, OH
 LINEAR FOOTAGE OF BASE
(PRODUCE INCLUDED) 775'-4"

 ASSUMED PALLET STORAGE 52
 BUILDING DIMENSIONS 109'-0" x 181'-0"
 SALES FLOOR DIMENSIONS 75'-3" x 154'-8"
 LENGTH OF MULTIDECK 120'
 COOLER MILK DOORS 4
 COOLER GENERAL DOORS 12
 FREEZER GENERAL DOORS 16
 SPOT MERCHANDISERS 10
 CART STORAGE 90

V7ER

779'-4"

74
119'-4" x 162'-8"
74'-10" x 151'-1"

120'
4

12
16
10

128

NORTH

KTA

MEM

Drawing No.Scale:

Project No.

Type:

Prototype:

Project Name & Location:

Drawing Name:

Inc.
(937) 323-5500

(937) 323-0023 fax

4400 S. Charleston Pike
Springfield, OH  45502

PL
O

TT
ED

: 6
/2

0/
20

24
 1

2:
00

 P
M

DO NOT SCALE PLANS
Copying, Printing, Software and other processes required to

produce these prints can stretch or shrink the actual paper or
layout.  Therefore, scaling of this drawing may be inaccurate.

Contact ms consultants with any need for additional dimensions
or clarifications.

Date:Issued:

Date:Revisions:

Planning Commission 06/20/24

ms consultants, inc.
engineers, architects, planners
2221 Schrock Road
Columbus, Ohio 43229-1547
phone  614.898.7100
fax  614.898.7570

8

8

8
0
5

888 8

0
0

0
8
X
8

0
00 0

88 8
68 8
88 8

0
0

8 3 8 6
9

0

000 0

000 0

4 X
50

0

00 0
00

0 0 0

4

X
X
X

X
X

X

78

00
XX
XX

000 00
0

X7
9

8
XX
XX

X X
XX

4XX
X X

X

X
X

X
X
X

X
X

4X
XXX
XXX

X
X
X
X
X
X

X 4
4XX 4

9 8

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

Seal

Store #:

40507-18

ALDI Inc.
Springboro, OH
827 W. Central Ave.
Springboro, OH  45066
Warren County

V7.0

Inline

As Noted

99

PROFESSIONAL OF RECORD:
THEODORE J. GAUSS No. 14079

EXP. DATE: 12/31/2025

1 Operations Plan
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Operations Plan

A-131



SIGNAGE

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY SQ. FT. PER SIGN TOTALS

TOWER SIGN 1 120.7 120.7

TOTAL SIGNAGE 120.7
SIGNAGE  IS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY AND SHALL BE UNDER SEPARATE
PERMIT SUBMITTAL

A10A10 A10A6

A4
A4

LEASE LINE LEASE LINE

EXISTING OPENING TO BE INFILLED.
TOOTH IN MASONRY TO MATCH EXISTING.

EXISTING OPENING TO BE INFILLED.
TOOTH IN MASONRY TO MATCH EXISTING.

EXISTING OPENING TO BE INFILLED.
TOOTH IN MASONRY TO MATCH EXISTING.

A4

A1

A4

A4A1 A7 A9A7A9A9A9 A2 A2

A2

A5A5A3A5 A3A3

A2

A6

LEASE LINE

LEASE LINE

12
'-1

"
SI

G
N

 C
A

BI
N

ET

10'-1"
SIGN CABINET

A8

0'-0"
FIN. FLOOR

16'-0"
T.O. DOCK WALL

A6A6 A10

A10

MATERIAL LEGEND

A1
BELDEN BRICK
MAYO BLEND

A2
FIBER CEMENT BOARD

 NICHIHA BARK

A3
ALUMINUM STOREFRONT - CLEAR

ANODIZED ALUMINUM

A4
ALUMINUM  COMPOSITE
PANEL - BRIGHT SILVER

A5
FIRESTONE - SILVER METALLIC

A6
EXTERIOR PAINT

SHERWIN WILLIAMS
#6005 FOLKSTONE

A7
CAST STONE CAP

TANNERSTONE AG-1

A8
EDGE METAL - SIERRA TAN

A9
CLEAR GLASS

A10
PAINT TO MATCH EXISTING

ADJACENT
TENANT ALDI

LEASE LINE

ADJACENT TENANTALDI

LEASE LINE

Please note that the colors shown here are a graphical
representation to show contrast in materials only.  Due to
the nature of electronic media, colors may vary
depending on computer or printer used.

For review of actual colors, a material sample board
should be created on a project specific basis.

KTA

MEM

Drawing No.Scale:

Project No.

Type:

Prototype:

Project Name & Location:

Drawing Name:

Inc.
(937) 323-5500

(937) 323-0023 fax

4400 S. Charleston Pike
Springfield, OH  45502

PL
O

TT
ED

: 6
/2

0/
20

24
 1

2:
22

 P
M

DO NOT SCALE PLANS
Copying, Printing, Software and other processes required to

produce these prints can stretch or shrink the actual paper or
layout.  Therefore, scaling of this drawing may be inaccurate.

Contact ms consultants with any need for additional dimensions
or clarifications.

Date:Issued:

Date:Revisions:

Planning Commission 06/20/24

ms consultants, inc.
engineers, architects, planners
2221 Schrock Road
Columbus, Ohio 43229-1547
phone  614.898.7100
fax  614.898.7570

8

8

8
0
5

888 8

0
0

0
8
X
8

0
00 0

88 8
68 8
88 8

0
0

8 3 8 6
9

0

000 0

000 0

4 X
50

0

00 0
00

0 0 0

4

X
X
X

X
X

X

78

00
XX
XX

000 00
0

X7
9

8
XX
XX

X X
XX

4XX
X X

X

X
X

X
X
X

X
X

4X
XXX
XXX

X
X
X
X
X
X

X 4
4XX 4

9 8

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

Seal

Store #:

40507-18

ALDI Inc.
Springboro, OH
827 W. Central Ave.
Springboro, OH  45066
Warren County

V7.0

Inline

As Noted

99

PROFESSIONAL OF RECORD:
THEODORE J. GAUSS No. 14079

EXP. DATE: 12/31/2025

1 Proposed Rear Elevation
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3 Proposed Front  Elevation
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

2 Proposed Dock Elevation
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
FIN. FLOOR

11'-10"
B.O. CANOPY

24'-6"
T.O. PARAPET

35'-6"
T.O. TOWER

0'-0"
FIN. FLOOR

+/- 21'-4"
T.O. EXISTING

WALL

16'-0"
T.O. DOCK WALL

4 Existing Front  Elevation
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0'-0"
FIN. FLOOR

14'-0" A.F.S.
T.O. BRICK

24'-6" A.F.S.
T.O. PARAPET





























648.10 NOISE ABATEMENT.

   (a)     Definitions.

(1)   "Construction" includes any site preparation, assembly, erection, repair, alteration, or similar action, or demolition of
buildings or structures.

(2)   "Emergency work" is any work or action necessary to deliver essential services including, but not limited to, repairing
water, gas, electric, and other utilities or public transportation facilities, removing fallen trees on public rights-of-way, or
abating life-threatening conditions.

(3)   "Noise" is any sound of such level and duration as to be or tend to be injurious to human health or welfare, or which
would unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property throughout the City or in any portions thereof.

(4)   "Manufacturing zoning district," means the M-1, Light Manufacturing Zoning District; the M-2, Heavy Manufacturing
Zoning District; the ED-Employment Center District; the ADD-1, Austin Center Development District; or any PUD, Planned
Unit Development, that allows manufacturing as a permitted use.

   (b)   No owner, manager or any person in charge or control of a property shall engage in or permit the playing of musical
or other instruments, singing, loud talking or the making of other noises in or about the premises in such manner as to
audible beyond the property line of the property on which the premises sits between the hours of 9:30 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.
the next day Sunday through Thursday; and between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. the next day on Friday and
Saturday. Extended hours for special events may be approved via the office of the City Manager or Chief of Police if
requested at least one week prior to the event.

   (c)   Exceptions.

(1)   The legal operation of manufacturing operations in manufacturing zoning districts and manufacturing operations legally
operating in other areas at the time of the adoption of this section.

(2)   Emergency work.

(3)   The operation of vehicular traffic, including warning signals, on public or semi-public rights-of-way, subject to applicable
regulations in the Traffic Code of the City of Springboro.

(4)   The reasonable ringing of church bells, the reasonable and ordinary noises attendant in athletic contests or lawful public
or semi-public meetings, parades or celebrations.

(5)   City operations and activities.

(6)   Construction activity and vehicle, machinery, or other similar equipment repair outside of a completely enclosed
structure except between 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. on any land within a residential zoning district.

   (d)   Whoever violates this section is guilty of a minor misdemeanor. Punishment shall be as provided in Section 698.02.

(Ord. 12-27. Passed 6-7-12.)



Vicinity Map—proposed rezoning from R-2 District to CBD

REZONING
SUBJECT 
PROPERTY

Historic District 
Boundary

Historic District 
Boundary



Permitted Uses in R-2, CBD Districts 

R-2, Low-Density Residential District CBD, Central Business District 
Residential Uses 
Single-family residential 
Residential day care 
Foster homes 
State licensed residential facilities, 1-16  persons 

Single-family residential 
Residential day care 
Foster homes 
State licensed residential facilities, 1-5 persons 

Community, Civic, Institutional Uses 
 
 
 
 
Places of worship 
Schools 
 
Public recreation 
Cultural, public uses 
Essential services 

Colleges 
Charitable, philanthropic organizations 
Private clubs, fraternal organizations, community 
groups 
Places of worship 
Schools 
Day care center 
Public recreation 
Cultural, public uses 
Essential services 

Commercial, Office, Service Uses 
 
Bed and breakfasts 
 
 
 
 
Other uses as determined by Zoning Inspector 
 
Golf course 

Retail sales 
Bed and breakfasts 
Bar or tavern 
Office 
Personal service establishment 
Hotel, motel, inn 
Other uses as determined by Zoning Inspector 
Funeral home 
 
Restaurants w/ or w/o drive-through 
Bakery 
Place of assembly 

Accessory, Temporary, Other Uses 
Accessory buildings, structures, and uses 
Farmer’s market 
Roadside stand 
 
Home occupation 
 

Accessory buildings, structures, and uses 
Farmer’s market 
Roadside stand 
Food trucks 
Home occupation 
Outdoor storage 
Off-street parking 
Outdoor dining 
Seasonal sales 
Personal wireless service facilities 

 











 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 1 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

City of Springboro 
320 West Central Avenue, Springboro, Ohio 45066 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Wednesday, June 12, 2024 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
Chris Pearson, Vice Chair, called the Wednesday, June 12, 2024 Springboro Planning Commission Meeting to order 
at 6:00 p.m. at the Springboro Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 320 West Central Avenue, Springboro, Ohio. 
 
Present: Chris Pearson, Robert Dimmitt, Matt Leedy, John Sillies, and Mike Thompson. 
 
Staff Present: Dan Boron, City Planner; Elmer Dudas, Development Director; and September Bee, Planning 
Commission Secretary. 
 
Mr. Sillies motioned to excuse Ms. Iverson and Mr. Harding. Mr. Thompson seconded the motion. 
 
Vote: Pearson, yes; Dimmit, yes; Leedy, yes; Sillies, yes; Thompson, yes; (5 yes – 0 no) 
 
 

II. Approval of Minutes 
 
May 08, 2024 Planning Commission Minutes 
 
Mr. Pearson asked for corrections or additions to the minutes. There were none. 
 
Mr. Dimmitt motioned to approve the May 08, 2024 Planning Commission minutes. Mr. Sillies seconded the 
motion. 
Vote: Pearson, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Leedy, yes; Sillies, yes; Thompson, yes; (5 yes - 0 no) 
 
 

III. Agenda Items 
A. Final Approval 

Final Development Plan, Bailey Farms PUD-R, Planned Unit Development-Residential, 6821 Red Lion-
Five Points Road, residential subdivision 
 
Background Information 
 
This is an application filed by M/I Homes of Cincinnati, LLC, seeking final development plan approval for the 
development of a single-family, residential subdivision. The subject property is approximately 79.9 acres in area 
and is located southeast of the corner of West Lower Springboro Road and Red Lion-Five Points Road. A total of 
130 single-family detached residential units are proposed in the PUD-R, Planned Unit Development-Residential. 
 
Final development plan review and approval by Planning Commission is the second stage of the PUD approval 
process. The first stage, rezoning and general plan approval, were completed earlier this year with the approval 
of the general plan by Planning Commission (February 14 meeting) and City Council (March 7). The rezoning of 
the property took place in 2007. 
 
This agenda item was reviewed on a preliminary basis at the May 8 Planning Commission meeting. 
 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 2 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

The proposed final development general plan submitted for review includes 130 single-family residential lots. A 
total of 66 6,760-square foot lots (52 feet wide and 130 feet deep) and 64 8,060-square foot (62 feet wide and 
130 feet deep) are proposed. Setbacks and other details are included in the submission. 
 
Primary access to the site is from Red Lion-Five Point Road midway between West Lower Springboro Road, and 
the intersection of Red Lion-Five Points Road and Springboro Road to the south. Secondary access is provided 
through an extension of Cambridge Drive and the Creekside subdivision to the west. While the subject property 
has frontage on West Lower Springboro Road, no access is proposed. The dedication of right-of-way is needed 
to accommodate the development both from the City (West Lower Springboro Road) and Clearcreek Township 
(Red Lion-Five Point Road). The eastern edge of the subject property coincides with the City corporation line. 
Fairway Drive to the west will be extended into the site with a cul-de-sac and terminated with no lots. 
 
A multiuse trail is proposed for public use along Red Lion-Five Points Road, extending through the development 
to West Lower Springboro Road. This trail will eventually connect with a similar trail to the south in the 
Clearcreek Reserve West subdivision. The bike lane on West Lower Springboro Road will be extended to the 
east corporation boundary concurrent to development of the Bailey Farm. Additional private trails are proposed 
within the development. All streets will incorporate sidewalks as provided by City code. 
 
The proposed general plan includes 45.36 acres of open space, or 55% of the subject property land area, 
however this includes 18.0 acres of land proposed to be dedicated as parkland. This includes a proposal for a 
common area including a playground and trails around an existing pond.  
 
Adjacent land uses include to the west the Creekside residential subdivision, on the north side of Lower 
Springboro Road a residential lot and beyond the Fieldstone residential subdivision. To the east in Clearcreek 
Township, residential lots on the north side of Lower Springboro Road and continuing to the east side of the 
property on the east side of Red Lion-Five Points Road in Clearcreek Township. The south side of the property 
coincides with the open space portion of the Clearcreek Reserve East residential subdivision in Springboro. 
 
Adjacent zoning in the Springboro portion of the vicinity includes R-2, Low-Density Residential District, in the 
Creekside, Fieldstone, and Clearcreek Reserve East subdivisions, and R-1 for remaining lands in the vicinity in 
the city. For the Clearcreek Township vicinity, R-1, Rural Residence Zone to the north and northeast, and to the 
east SR-1, Suburban Residence Zone, and OSR-1, Open Space Rural Residence Zone. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
City staff recommends approval of the final development plan subject to the following comments: 

 
1. All homes to be consistent with Section 1264.06, Development Standards for Specific Uses, Single-Family 

Dwellings (Detached) for compliance of some of the home plans with (b) Appearance, and (c) Garages with 
respect to 60% maximum width and side/rear access. 

2. Coordinate with Zoning Inspector for review of development signage and compliance with Sign Code. 
3. Multiuse trail to be built to AASHTO standard. 
4. Label slab lots on plan. 
5. Proposed cul-de-sac (turnaround) located at west end of Bailey Lane to be constructed in Phase 1. Also, the 

removal of the sanitary lift station and water main extension into Heatherwoode Golf Course to be 
constructed in Phase 1. 

6. Proposed walking path through open space to be accessible to the public. 
7. Roadway improvements along West Lower Springboro Road to include dedication of 40-foot half right-of-

way, widen the road to 18 feet from center line of road to south, add ODOT Type 2 curb & gutter, storm 
sewer, sidewalk/buffered bike lane. 

8. No development is to occur in the floodway and or floodplain, without prior permit approval by the City 
Engineer. 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 3 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

9. Roadway and utility improvements shall be per city specifications. 
10. Details regarding the improvements along Red-Lion Five Points Road to meet requirements of Warren 

County/Clearcreek Township and meet the requirements of the previous annexation of the property, 
specifically:  When the subject property is proposed to be developed, the owner will, as part of its Record 
Plat establish a fifty foot (50') wide buffer strip along the west side of Red Lion-Five Points Road, to be 
owned and maintained by the homeowners' association for the subdivision. With the filing of such record 
plat, the owner shall also guarantee the construction of an attractively contoured seven foot (7') high, 
minimum, landscaped mound within the buffer strip, with side slopes not to exceed a grade of 3:1. The 
minimum height of the mound shall be measured from the existing grade of the adjoining pavement on Red 
Lion-Five Points Road. The buffer strip may be reduced in width to no less than 40' where the side of the 
mound away from Red Lion-Five Points Road is terminated into a decorative stone retaining wall. The 
retaining wall need not follow the lot line if it is entirely within the buffer strip. In such event, the adjacent 
building lot may extend to that retaining wall. Included in the landscaping of the buffer strip shall be trees of 
appropriate species. Evergreen trees shall be at least 5 feet tall and deciduous trees shall be at least 1-1/2-
inch caliper at the time of planting. Provide cross section of buffer and paved trail, along Red Lion Five 
Points Road, to confirm that 50 feet green space buffer is wide enough to meet requirements stated above. 
If not, revise accordingly. 

11. Basements shall be served by gravity sewer and shall not be permitted otherwise. Grinder pumps are not 
permitted. 

12. Only 19 lots are permitted to be platted prior to second entrance. 
13. Post lights shall be located on each lot, controlled by a photoelectric cell, and shall always be operable. 
14. HOA documents to be reviewed and approved by City prior to recording. 

 
Discussion: 
 
Mr. Brent Wilkens, of M/I Homes, 9349 Waterstone Boulevard, Mason, introduced himself to the Planning 
Commission and staff.  
 
Mr. Boron gave a summary of this agenda item. He said that his item was on the May 8 agenda for preliminary 
review. This property was rezoned in 2007 to PUD-R to be a residential development with up to 130 single-family 
units to be constructed on the property. No General Plan was submitted at the time of rezoning. In late 2022 and 
into 2023, the General Plan was submitted to Planning Commission for their review. 
 
This is stage two of the review process, final development plan, which identifies individual parcels for 
development as well as buffers and other elements of the plan as the property moves from concept to more 
construction detail. The next time this will appear before the Planning Commission is when the developer 
submits their record plan, which would allow for the dedication of streets, open space as well as the individual 
lots.  
 
There is land at the southernmost portion of the property which is proposed to be dedicated to the City of 
Springboro as parkland, originally proposed to be 18 acres but is 14 acres of space along the bottomland 
adjacent to Clearcreek. It will be like E. Milo Beck Park, which is just an undeveloped open space. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Mr. Wilkens if he had any questions or comments regarding the staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Wilkens responded that he did not. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if Planning Commission members had any questions or comments. 
 
Mr. Sillies asked about the detention pond that was included in the previously submitted plan. Was that issue 
resolved as to where the location would be. 
 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 4 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

Mr. Boron said that the pond had been removed which is why, in part, the space has been reduced to 14 acres. 
 
Mr. Dimmitt asked what the AASHTO standard is as mentioned in Comment number 3. 
 
Mr. Boron said the AASHTO, American Association of State and Highway Transportation Officials, standards 
define trail design including width, curves, slope, and other details. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if there were any questions for the applicant. There were none. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for a motion to approve. 
 
Mr. Sillies made a motion to approve the Final Approval, Final Development Plan, 6821 Red Lion-Five Points 
Road, Bailey Farm PUD-R, Planned Unit Development, residential subdivision. Mr. Thompson seconded the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for roll call. 
 
Vote: Pearson, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Leedy, yes; Sillies, yes; Thompson, yes; (5-0) 
 
Mr. Pearson said the motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 

B. Final Approval 
Site Plan Review, 785 West Central Avenue (SR 73), proposed Seven Brew Coffee 
 

 Background Information 
 

This agenda item is a proposal submitted by Woolpert’s Cincinnati office for site plan review approval to 
construct a Seven Brew drive-through coffee shop at 785 West Central Avenue (SR 73). The property is the site 
of the now-closed Long John Silver’s restaurant. The property is zoned HBD, Highway Business District, a 
zoning category that permits the use. This item was reviewed on a preliminary basis at the April 10 Planning 
Commission meeting. 

 
While the property had direct frontage on West Central Avenue, access will be from the common drive to the 
Midway Plaza shopping center immediately to the west. 

 
Existing zoning for the vicinity of the subject property is exclusively HBD, including to the north on the north side 
of the West Central Avenue the Sheetz gas station/convenience store/drive-through restaurant (800 West 
Central Avenue), and to its east a multi-tenant office building, and on the south side of West Central Avenue, 
McDonald’s (775 West Central Avenue), and to the south and west the Midway Plaza shopping center (815-875 
West Central Avenue) and its outparcels. 

 
 Staff Recommendation 
 

City staff recommends approval of the site plan subject to the following comments: 
 

1. Provide indication of building population at maximum shift for determination of off-street parking 
requirement. 

2. Indicate plans for the screening of the proposed dumpster. All mechanical and other equipment to be 
screened. 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 5 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

3. Signage subject to review by Zoning Inspector outside of the site plan review process including ground, wall, 
and directional signage.  

4. Obsolete signs currently on the property to be removed. 
5. For exterior lighting plan, address the following: 

a. Revise photometric analysis to reduce lighting levels more than those permitted for parking/circulation 
and under canopy areas. 

b. Revise average to minimum (4:1 or less), and maximum to minimum (10:1 or less) ratios to meet code. 
c. Verify that color-temperature of proposed lighting does not exceed 3500 Kelvin. 
d. Proposed Cooper under canopy lighting not darksky.com compliant. Select compliant fixture or 

demonstrate appropriateness of lighting. 
6. Create record plan dedicating the existing right-of-way along West Central Avenue. 
7. Parking to be minimum 9 feet from property line (northwest corner of site does not meet). 
8. Provide dumpster enclosure details. 
9. C-002 – Revise Utility Notes #8. Minimum sewer slope to be 2%. Remove text “unless otherwise noted.” 

Revise sheet C-401 to reflect minimum slopes are met. 
10. C-401 – Keep sanitary sewer lateral beneath storm sewer crossing. Revise slopes accordingly. 
11. C-401 – Verify that storm sewer outlet pipe meets the 18 inches minimum crossing clearance. 
12. The existing sanitary lateral must be 6 inches minimum diameter pipe (SDR 35 or SCH 40 material) at 2% 

min slope. Otherwise, provide new 6-inch sanitary sewer lateral. 
13. C-401 – Add note stating that water meter pit to meet city specifications. Show meter pit location on plan 

and provide standard drawing. 
14. Landscaping within existing right-of-way is not permitted. Provide buffer landscaping of drive through by 

other means. Otherwise, if permitted, landscaping is not permitted on existing utilities. Show revised plan 
with utilities located. 

 
Discussion: 
 
Sarah Kramer, Woolpert, 1203 Walnut Street, Cincinnati, introduced herself to the Planning Commission and 
staff. 
 
Mr. Boron gave a summary of this agenda item. He said this item was reviewed by the Planning Commission at 
the April 10 meeting. This is a proposal to re-use the property formerly the site of Long John Silver’s site at 785 
West Central Avenue (SR 73) adjacent to the Midway Plaza Shopping Center. The use is permitted in this 
district. Most of the staff comments have to do with engineering comments having to do with the layout of the site 
and other details. City staff is making a recommendation for approval, subject to complying with staff comments. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Ms. Kramer if she had any questions or concerns about the staff comments. 
 
Ms. Kramer says they have a hardship that they would like to discuss regarding the landscaping of the frontage 
road. She distributed plans to staff and Planning Commission members illustrating the utilities. She said that how 
the site is laid out currently, the right-of-way divots in and then comes out which is a hardship in and of itself 
because the site has a limited footprint, and it is not grandfathered in for the new zoning after LJS was created.  
 
On the north and east property lines there are a lot of utilities within the proposed site. There are at least 20-foot 
easements and there are utility lines directly where the pavement is or where they could have put any kind of 
plantings there. Woolpert is proposing to put some of the landscaping in the right-of-way or at least in the 
triangular area which would not be used as part of any kind of roadway improvement. They were hoping that 
Planning Commission members would allow this compromise.  
 
Mr. Pearson asked if Ms. Kramer was referring to comment number 14, landscaping within existing right-of-way 
is not permitted and if she had discussed this issue and their proposed compromise with City staff. 
 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 6 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

Ms. Kramer said yes, she had spoken with Mr. Boron prior to this meeting, and he said that he would like the 
Planning Commission to hear Woolpert’s ideas and see what they think. 
 
Mr. Boron said that the landscaping code allows the Planning Commission to provide some relief to the 
applicant. This request is not a variance but in situations like this where there are not many options, the Planning 
Commission does have some leeway in granting this type of requested change when there are no other options 
to explore. 
 
Ms. Kramer said they do not have any other options. They cannot go any further south because of the 
requirement to have parking a minimum of 9-feet from the property line. The two-lane stacking is now located on 
top of the bypass lane. They cannot go any further north because of the utilities located in that area. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked for clarification of where the applicant cannot add landscaping. 
 
Ms. Kramer said it was the frontage area facing West Central Avenue. 
 
Mr. Boron asked if what they are proposing could be modified to avoid any areas that might be affected by any 
potential future road improvements. 
 
Ms. Kramer referred to the plans submitted and explained where the proposed landscaping would be planted. 
 
Mr. Boron explained that in this case, the right-of-way was from prior zoning as part of this site’s original 
development. The older streets in Springboro such as West Central Avenue and Clearcreek-Franklin Road often 
have the property line at the center line. Over time, the City has been asking for applicants to provide a 
dedication of right-of-way so that the right-of-way will be under City control and as a benefit, it comes off the tax 
roll for the property owner. This right-of-way was never dedicated so the applicant will be putting landscaping on 
their land but it will be right-of-way. The Planning Commission can find that this proposed compromise is 
acceptable, and the City would carry out their approval. That is what the code allows. 
 
Mr. Dimmitt commented that the only downside is if something is done to Central Avenue, the landscaping would 
need to be moved. 
 
Mr. Boron confirmed this. 
 
Ms. Kramer said that currently the McDonald’s located to the west of this site has landscaping all the way up to 
the public sidewalk which is out of their property line. 
 
Mr. Sillies said that this compromise for the landscaping seems reasonable and he believes the Planning 
Commission should be flexible in this situation; Mr. Thompson agreed with him. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked how the Planning Commission could amend the agenda item so that they can vote on it 
tonight. 
 
Mr. Boron replied that they would vote on the item as amended as submitted by the applicant when a motion for 
approval is called for. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if the revision submitted at this meeting meets all the other staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Boron said yes. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Ms. Kramer if she had any other comments she would like to discuss this evening. 
 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 7 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

Ms. Kramer said the only other comments they wanted to discuss were Comments number 3 and 4 regarding 
signage location. She asked her team to address Planning Commission members. 
 
Matthew Weymouth, 5831 Stewart Road, Columbus, introduced himself and said that they would like to create 
better visibility for their proposed sign. They said they had considered using the existing sign, but they were 
willing to work with the City and Planning Commission to have better visibility from the roadway. The sign must 
be set back from the utility easement so that it is not in the utility zone. 
 
Mr. Boron said that the existing sign is obsolete and must be completely removed concurrent to this review 
process. The existing sign height is too high for current standards. He explained there are options for the sign 
height, like what is installed at Thornton’s to the west. There is a sign that is in a hole at the interchange that 
allows for a sign that is 6-feet above the finished grade adjacent to the sign; that sign is 12-feet high but still only 
6-feet above the finished grade. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if Ms. Kramer had any other questions. She did not. 
 
Mr. Leedy asked for clarification regarding parking and employees coming and going to work. Does the new plan 
submitted reflect changes to the parking situation or have they chosen to live with what the staff comments have 
addressed? 
 
Ms. Kramer replied that they were going to work with what is available onsite and go from there. Given that there 
is such limited space available onsite, they will utilize the shared spaces in the shopping center parking lot for 
employee parking. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked if a front door had been added to the plans. 
 
Ms. Kramer said they have proposed a bump-out at the front of the building, much like a small vestibule with a 
front door. They will still have the manufacturers building proposed on April 10 with a modification to the front. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for any further questions or comments. There were none. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for a motion to approve as amended. 
 
Mr. Thompson made a motion to approve the Final Approval, Site Plan Review, 785 West Central Avenue (SR 
73), proposed Seven Brew Coffee as amended. Mr. Dimmitt seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for roll call. 
 
Vote: Pearson, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Leedy, yes; Sillies, yes; Thompson, yes; (5-0) 
 
Mr. Pearson said the motion was approved unanimously.  



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 8 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Final Approval 
Preliminary Subdivision Plan, Northeast Corner West Central Avenue (SR73) and Clearcreek-Franklin 
Road, residential subdivision 
 
Background Information 
 
This agenda item is a request for preliminary subdivision review of the proposed Eastbrook Farms subdivision 
located northeast of the intersection of West Central Avenue (SR 73) and Clearcreek-Franklin Road. The 
application was submitted on behalf of Eastbrook Farms, Inc., Lebanon, property owner. The proposal includes 
the development of 45 residential lots on 13.18 acres of land on the northern portion of the 83.12-acre Eastbrook 
Farm; the 83.12-acre property extends south to West Central Avenue (SR 73); there are no current plans to 
develop the remaining 66.94 acres on the parent lot. The proposed subdivision abuts the Tamarack Hills/Royal 
Tamarack/Royal Springs/Royal Meadows subdivisions to the north. This item was reviewed on a preliminary 
basis at the May 8 Planning Commission meeting. 

 
The subject property is zoned R-2, Low-Density Residential District. The R-2 District allows residential 
development at a density of four dwelling units per acre on lots no smaller than 9,000 square feet; the proposed 
subdivision is consistent with the R-2 District development standards. The applicants propose 45 residential lots 
along a street parallel to Whispering Pines. Access to the subdivision would be from Clearcreek-Franklin Road to 
the west and Evergreen Drive to the north. The subdivision proposes two stub streets to the south: one at an 
extension of Evergreen Drive, and another at the midpoint of the subdivision. Open space is provided with one 
lot in the interior of the subdivision, and on the east portion of the subject property along Twin Creek. Proposed 
lots range in size from 9,375 square feet (34 lots) to 14,337 square feet. 
 
Adjacent land uses are single-family residential to the north within the Tamarack Hills/Royal Tamarack/Royal 
Springs/Royal Meadows subdivisions, single-family residential to the east within the Wood Ridge subdivision, 
vacant land comprises the remaining 69.94 acres within the Eastbrook Farm property, and single-family 
residential to the west on the west side of Clearcreek-Franklin Road both in Franklin Township and Springboro. 
To the northwest is the Sanctuary assisted living facility. 
 
Adjacent zoning includes R-2 District to the north within the Tamarack Hills/Royal Tamarack/Royal 
Springs/Royal Meadows subdivisions, PUD, Planned Unit Development, to east within the Wood Ridge 
subdivision, O, Office District, to the south for the remainder of the Eastbrook Farm property, and to the west 
PUD-R for the Sanctuary assisted living facility, R-2 for a lot to the south (8617 Clearcreek-Franklin) within the 
City, and Franklin Township R2, Rural Residence District (6593 Clearcreek-Franklin). 
 
All property owners within 300 feet of the 83.12-acre property were notified by courtesy letter of the May 8 
review, with information on how to access the subdivision application, and details about the meeting. 

 
 Staff Recommendation 
 

City staff recommends approval of the preliminary subdivision subject to the following comments: 
 

1. Change subdivision name to Eastbrook Farms, Section One. 
2. Proposed development signage, if desired, subject to review by Zoning Inspector. 
3. Verify house plans provided for May 8 meeting are to be used for final approval. 
4. Architectural plans to be consistent with Section 1264.06 of Planning and Zoning Code. 
5. Ensure that future roadway extension is not impeded by detention basin. Otherwise, relocate basin. 
6. Only 19 lots are permitted to be platted prior to second entrance being constructed and platted. 
7. Provide easement language, and exhibits, for east end of property including larger Eastbrook Farms 

property. 
8. Provide central mailbox unit, which shall also be reviewed by postmaster. 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 9 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

9. HOA documents to be reviewed by City staff prior to recording and must be recorded prior to record plan 
approval by city council. 

 
Discussion: 
 
Mr. John Del Verne, Bayer Becker, 6900 Tylersville Road, Mason, was present to answer questions from 
Planning Commission members and staff. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Mr. Boron for a summary of this item. 
 
Mr. Boron said this item was reviewed at the May 8 Planning Commission meeting on a preliminary basis. This 
case involves conventional zoning, not rezoning. It is request for subdivision review under the City’s subdivision 
ordinance for development of the property, meeting all the R-2, Low Density Residential District, standards that 
are in place on the northern perimeter of the property, 400-feet wide, for 45 lots which meet the minimum 
requirements. Approval of this item will allow the developer to move forward to the next stage of the subdivision 
review process, which is platting. Several engineering comments are noted in the staff recommendations; these 
will be resolved as the project progresses. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if the next time this item came before the Planning Commission, would it be for the record 
plan? 
 
Mr. Boron replied yes, there may be site development occurring prior to the record plan, but no construction will 
occur. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Mr. Del Verne if he had any questions about the staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Del Verne said they had no questions at this time. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Planning Commission members if they had any questions. 
 
Mr. Sillies asked about the retention pond to be located on the site. 
 
Mr. Boron said the retention pond would be in an area that will not be developed. No subdivision development 
will occur in the flood plain or east of the creek. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if there were any further questions. 
 
Mr. Dudas stated that Comment number 7 should be amended to read “Provide easement language, and 
exhibits, for a multiuse trail for east end of property including larger Eastbrook Farms property”. 
 
Ms. Bee noted the amendment of Comment number 7 for the record. 
 
Mr. Boron said that Fischer Homes submitted an additional 167-page document detailing all the construction 
options available for buyers to select. This was not included in the electronic packet available on the City’s 
website; it will be added to the website as a separate document. These plans will be approved as reference. He 
asked Ms. Jennifer Gonzalez to explain these plans in more detail. 
 
Ms. Jennifer Gonzalez, Fischer Homes, 7777 Washington Village Drive, Washington Township, stated that 
Fischer Homes is proposing their Designer Collection of homes. This is part of the same collection as what is 
being offered at the Wadestone subdivision currently under construction. The smallest of the homes to choose 
from would be a 3-bedroom, 2-bathroom ranch-style home with a basement; the largest home could go upward 
of 4,200 square feet with a basement. Each floorplan will have several styles of homes to choose from. The 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 10 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

starting price for the homes will be in the $500,000.00 range and then upward dependent upon any options 
buyers may choose to install. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if there were any further questions. There were none. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for a motion to approve as amended. 
 
Mr. Sillies made a motion to approve the Final Approval, Preliminary Subdivision Plan, Northeast Corner West 
Central Avenue (SR 73) and Clearcreek-Franklin Road, residential subdivision as amended. Mr. Dimmitt 
seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for roll call. 
 
Vote: Pearson, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Leedy, yes; Sillies, yes; Thompson, yes; (5-0) 
 
Mr. Pearson said the motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 

D. Preliminary Review  
Rezoning, 500 East Street, from R-2, Low-Density Residential District, to CBD, Central Business District 
 

 Background Information 
 

This agenda item is based on a request filed by Massey, LLC, property owner, seeking approval to rezone 
approximately 1.3 acres of land located at 500 East Street. The property, which includes two separate parcels 
under common ownership, is currently zoned R-2, Low-Density Residential District; the applicant is requesting 
rezoning to CBD, Central Business District. 
 
The property was until recently used as a single-family residence, however the applicant earlier this spring was 
in the process of converting part of the structure into a bed-and-breakfast. Both single-family residences and 
bed-and-breakfast are permitted uses in the R-2 District. While the application states that the request is to 
accommodate an outdoor event space, the rezoning of property permits all permitted uses within the district. A 
chart of permitted uses in both the R-2 and CBD is included in the meeting materials. 
 
The property includes two structures that appear on the Ohio Historic Inventory (OVI) prepared for the City in 
1997. The OVI was used as a basis to determine the boundaries of the Springboro Historic District and protected 
or contributing properties within it. The first structure is a circa 1850-1860 shed on the north side of the property 
that is presently used for storage. The second is a circa 1860 barn that was converted into a residence in the 
1980s. The shed is a contributing structure of the Springboro Historic District; however, the residence is not. The 
Historic District’s east boundary ends on the east property line of the subject properties. 
 
The Springboro Master Plan, adopted by City Council in February 2022, includes recommendations for the long-
range development of the community. It is divided into 16 policy areas that make specific recommendations for 
smaller portions of the community and are grouped together because of proximity, land use patterns, date of 
development and other characteristics. Policy Area 13, Historic Code, includes the subject area. The policy area 
recommends a mix of uses to ensure a lively interactive district including residential, service, and retail. An 
excerpt of the plan addressing Policy Area 13 is included in the meeting materials. 
 
Adjacent land uses include single-family residential uses to the southwest, west, and north. To the east is an 
industrial area that includes Mound Steel and High Concrete. To the south is a commercial use (110 East Mill 
Street) and apartment building (100 East Mill Street). Adjacent zoning includes R-2 District to the west and north, 
M-2, Heavy Industrial District, to the west, and CBD to the south and southwest along East Mill Street. 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 11 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Following the preliminary review scheduled for the June 12 meeting, the Planning Commission may authorize 
this item to be placed on a future Planning Commission regular meeting agenda for formal approval in the form 
of a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Courtesy notification letters were sent out to all property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. A copy of 
the letter is included in the meeting materials. Should this proposal move forward, the same property owners will 
be notified of a Public Hearing of the City Council on the rezoning of the property. 

 
 Staff Comments 
 

City staff has the following comments regarding this agenda item. 
 

1. Provide legal description of parcels. Contact City Engineer at 937-748-6184 for additional information. 
2. No additional development is to occur in the floodway and/or floodplain without prior approval by the City 

Engineer. 
3. Future development of site including structures and pavement subject to review by City staff under site plan 

review process prior to building code review. 
 
Discussion: 
 
Mr. Doug Massey, Massey LLC, 500 East Street, Springboro, introduced himself to the Planning Commission 
and staff. 
 
Mr. Boron said this is a preliminary review regarding rezoning of property at 500 East Street. This is the first 
property on East Street when going northbound from East Mill Street on the right side, immediately north of an 
apartment building and a former taxidermy business, both located on East Mill Street. This item is for two 
properties, approximately 1.3 acres together. The property is currently zoned R-2, Low-Density Residential 
District, one of two largest districts located in the Historic District, the other being CBD, Central Business District, 
which is primarily along South Main Street from Central Avenue and just past Mill Street, and along Mill Street. 
There are other pockets located on East Central Avenue and on East Market Street near the historic Quaker 
meeting house. Most of East Street is zoned R-2, but not all. There is property further north on East Street at 
East Market Street, the former Clearcreek Township fire administrative offices and station, that is also zoned as 
CBD. 
 
A letter was sent out as a courtesy to all property owners within 300 feet of these properties notifying them of the 
applicant’s request for rezoning. Mr. Boron said that the CBD allows for residential uses, cultural and public 
facilities such as the historic museum, churches, businesses, and offices. If this request is approved, the 
applicant can use his property for any use permitted in the CBD. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked if the house is being used as a residence currently, and if both properties have separate 
facilities. 
 
Mr. Massey replied that no one is using the house as a residence at this time. It is being used for family functions 
occasionally. The property that has the house on it has restroom facilities, but the second property just has the 
historically protected shed with electric and water connections. 
 
Mr. Sillies asked what activity is proposed for this site. 
 
Mr. Massey said they would like to use it for outdoor wedding events, including receptions. 
 
Mr. Sillies asked about the City’s ordinance relative to noise levels and timing for events. 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 12 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Mr. Boron said that the current rules require all loud noise levels to be reduced below the required decibel levels 
no later than 11:00 p.m. on weekends. 
 
Mr. Dimmitt asked if there were going to be alcohol sales at the property. 
 
Mr. Massey said they would be private events so the hosts would provide their own alcohol/beverage services. 
Their intent is for one party to rent the space from Friday through Sunday and the renter would hire their own 
caterers as desired.  
 
Mr. Boron said that any event host who wants to provide alcohol at an event would be required to apply for a 
permit to sell alcoholic beverages. 
 
Mr. Dimmitt asked if the applicant would have any control over what the renters may and may not do on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Massey replied yes, they would have a contract that states the allowable usage of the property during the 
span of their rental time. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked if the applicant would have any representative onsite during an ongoing event. 
 
Mr. Massey said they would not have a representative onsite. 
 
There was a discussion among Planning Commission members and staff about the permitted usage of the 
property in the future if this property is rezoned to CBD. It would allow for any permitted CBD use to be 
established on the property. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked if the two properties located to the south of the applicant’s property are both zoned for 
CBD use. 
 
Mr. Boron said that they are both zoned for CBD. 
 
Mr. Thompson said that there is no real reason not to extend the CBD north to include the applicant’s properties. 
Any detriment to the use of the properties after the rezoning would be covered under other rules, regulations, 
and legislation. 
 
Mr. Boron said Mr. Thompson was correct. Any activity in the City would be subject to all nuisance standards in 
place, including the noise ordinance that was adopted five years ago in response to complaints that were 
received for various events. There are specific regulations requiring music or any noise coming from any activity 
must stop at specific times during the week and on the weekends.  
 
In addition to noise, there are other nuisances that need to be addressed, including parking. Operating this type 
of business in a residential area is a concern but all those issues would be resolved when the permit comes 
forward to having the business happen if it were a permitted use.  
 
Mr. Boron stated The Architectural Review Board (ARB) would be the group that would decide if the applicant’s 
permit would be approved because the properties are both located in the Historic District; the house is not 
protected but the shed is protected. Everything in this district is reviewed through a site plan review process with 
City staff and ARB members, like the review process for projects that come before the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked what the next step in this process would be moving forward. 
 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 13 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

Mr. Boron said that this is a preliminary review, and Planning Commission members would be asked to have a 
final review to then make a recommendation to the City Council. City Council will set a public hearing and at that 
time all the residents who were notified within 300 feet of this rezoning request would get a notification, a sign 
would be put up on the property and there would be a public hearing where City Council members will hear the 
pros and cons of what is being proposed and go through that hearing process. 
 
Mr. Dimmitt asked Mr. Boron how the two properties under discussion fit into the overall layout of the Historic 
District, East Street in particular. 
 
Mr. Boron said that the on the west side of East Street, all the properties are protected properties or contributing 
structures, all the way up to the cross street, South Street and then one more property north of South Street up 
to the alley between Factory and South Streets. The house on the east side of East Street is not protected, but 
the shed on the second property is protected. The apartment building to the south on Mill Street is part of the 
Historic District but is not protected. Any new construction on either property would need to go before the ARB 
for approval to ensure the integrity of the district. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked Mr. Massey if he had any questions. 
 
Mr. Massey said he did not have any further questions. 
 
It was determined by Planning Commission members that this item should be approved to be included on the 
next agenda for final approval to go before the City Council for review. No further submissions from the applicant 
are necessary currently. 
 
Mr. Pearson thanked Mr. Massey for attending the meeting. 
 
 

IV. Guest Comments 
 
Mr. Pearson called for guest comments. He asked anyone who wished to speak to approach the podium and 
introduce themselves. 
 
Mr. Darren Marsh, 420 South Main Street, introduced himself and said that he had addressed the City Council 
last year with a neighborhood petition regarding a noise complaint at Heather’s Coffee and Café, 550 South 
Main Street. The petition asked for a required noise reduction. Heather’s has taken steps to reduce the noise, 
and those changes have helped. He is concerned that another venue that may have live outdoor music will 
disrupt the neighborhood even further. Mr. Marsh is also concerned that parking on East Street will be affected 
negatively because he feels that there is no way to locate a parking lot on the properties being discussed. He 
requested that Planning Commission members not approve this request for rezoning. 
 
Ms. Paula Marsh, 420 South Main Street, approached the podium and stated that she has the same concerns as 
her husband. She thinks that two music venues so close to each other will be a detriment to their neighborhood. 
She requested the Planning Commission to not recommend moving forward with this rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Jonathan Duck, 435 East Street, addressed the Planning Commission and staff. He has similar concerns as 
previously stated by Mr. and Ms. Marsh. He said that when there was an event held at 500 East Street earlier 
this spring, the noise level was unacceptable, and the additional vehicles parked along the street blocked all 
access to his property and narrowed traffic down to one lane. He sleeps during the day and the noise will 
interfere with his sleep. 
 
Mr. Joseph Behari, Jr., 404 and 408 East Street, approached the podium and introduced himself. He has the 
same concerns as the previous guests have voiced. He is concerned that the potential for poor behavior on the 



 

 
July 12, 2024                   City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                   Page 14 of 14 

               Meeting Minutes 
 

part of the renters at any event held on this property. He feels that it will be hard to enforce any violations which 
might occur during an event and the results, if this item moves forward, will be disastrous. 
 
Ms. Jane Behari, 404 and 408 East Street, introduced herself to the Planning Commission and staff. Her biggest 
concern with this application is the parking on East Street and connecting streets. Parking is often blocked when 
there is an event being held in Historic Downtown Springboro, and she feels that parking will be an ongoing 
issue if the rezoning is approved. The valley that the proposed venue sits in allows for sound to be channeled up 
the creek and is extremely loud. She is also concerned about enforcement of any noise ordinances that would 
be in effect both during the week and on the weekends. 
 
Mr. Pearson called for any additional guest comments. There were none. He thanked all the residents who 
spoke at this evening's meeting and said that their comments would be taken into consideration. 
 
 

V. Planning Commission and Staff Comments 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if there were any further questions or comments from Planning Commission members. There 
were none. 
 
Mr. Boron commented that the next meeting will be on Wednesday, July 10 at 6:00 pm in Council Chambers. 
The rezoning for 500 East Street will be on the agenda along with some other projects to be submitted. The 
deadline for submittals for the July 10 meeting is Friday, June 21 at noon. 
 
Mr. Pearson said he would not be available to attend the meeting on July 10. 
 
Mr. Boron said the meeting materials packet for Planning Commission members and staff will be distributed 
earlier than usual because of staff schedules for the week of the 4th of July holiday. It will be out on Friday, June 
28. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked for any further questions or comments. There were none. 
 
 

VI. Adjournment 

Mr. Pearson called for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mr. Thompson motioned to adjourn the June 12, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting at 7:19 pm 
Mr. Sillies seconded the motion. 

 
Vote: Pearson, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Leedy, yes; Sillies, yes; Thompson, yes (5 yes - 0 no) 
 
Mr. Pearson said that the motion is approved unanimously, and the meeting is adjourned. 

 
 
 ________________________________________ 
 Becky Iverson, Planning Commission Chairperson 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ _______________________________________ 
 Dan Boron, Planner     September Bee, Planning Commission Secretary 


	Aldi 99 C5.0 OVERALL SITE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C5.0 OVERALL SITE PLAN


	Aldi 99 C5.1 SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C5.1 SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN


	Plant Fitness Plans Springboro OH_For Zoning.pdf
	A-110 - CONSTRUCTION PLAN
	A-310 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

	Plant Fitness Plans Springboro OH_For Zoning.pdf
	A-110 - CONSTRUCTION PLAN
	A-310 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

	7 Brew Coffee 14825-021-NEFF-7-Brew-Dedication-Plat-Springboro-2024-06-20.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Dedication-Plat


	500 east street exhibit 300 ft halo letter attachment.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	WADESTONE PLAT PH3 .pdf
	WADESTONE PLAT PH3 PG1
	WADESTONE PLAT PH3 PG2

	2024 07 10 planning commission comments and background.pdf
	City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting
	A. Final Approval
	Record Plan, 785 West Central Avenue (SR 73), right-of-way dedication for proposed Seven Brew Coffee
	B. Final Approval
	Record Plan, Wadestone subdivision, Phase 3, residential subdivision
	C. Final Approval
	Site Plan Review, 825 West Central Avenue (SR 73), exterior renovations for Planet Fitness
	D. Final Approval
	Site Plan Review, 827 West Central Avenue (SR 73), exterior renovations for Aldi grocery store
	E. Final Approval
	Rezoning, 500 East Street, from R-2, Low-Density Residential District, to CBD, Central Business District

	03 ALDI 99 Springboro, OH - A131 Operations Plan_240620.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A131


	04 ALDI 99 Springboro, OH - A201 Material Board_240620.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A201 Color


	Wall Signs Print3.pdf
	1: Construction 
	2: ELEVATION

	2024 06 12 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes FINAL.pdf
	III. Agenda Items
	A. Final Approval
	B. Final Approval
	Site Plan Review, 785 West Central Avenue (SR 73), proposed Seven Brew Coffee
	This agenda item is a proposal submitted by Woolpert’s Cincinnati office for site plan review approval to construct a Seven Brew drive-through coffee shop at 785 West Central Avenue (SR 73). The property is the site of the now-closed Long John Silver’...
	14. Landscaping within existing right-of-way is not permitted. Provide buffer landscaping of drive through by other means. Otherwise, if permitted, landscaping is not permitted on existing utilities. Show revised plan with utilities located.
	C. Final Approval
	This agenda item is a request for preliminary subdivision review of the proposed Eastbrook Farms subdivision located northeast of the intersection of West Central Avenue (SR 73) and Clearcreek-Franklin Road. The application was submitted on behalf of ...
	1. Change subdivision name to Eastbrook Farms, Section One.
	D. Preliminary Review
	Rezoning, 500 East Street, from R-2, Low-Density Residential District, to CBD, Central Business District




